
 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
4:30 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION – if needed 
  
5:30 P.M. – INVOCATION – Pastor Chad Nall, Faith Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Janet Parris, Assistant County Manager 
 
CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 
address in this meeting? 
 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Procedures are attached) 
 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
III. RECOGNITIONS  
 

A. Chairman Nick Picerno 
 
B. Vice Chairman Randy Saunders 

 
IV. PRESENTATIONS 

 
V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will be 
held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A. Minutes: November 1, 2016 Regular Meeting  
B. Calico Ridge Board Order 
C. Tax Releases/Refunds – October 2016 
D. Declaration of Insolvents 
E. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Well Site 11 
F. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Well Site 8 
G. Resolution Accepting High Bid for Property at Central Dr/Hwy 22 
H. Budget Amendment 

 
VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 

 



 2

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Finance – Request for Approval of Resolution Regarding Limited Obligation Bonds – 
EMWD – Series 2016 (Caroline Xiong) 
 

B. Public Safety – Request for Approval of FEMA Reimbursement Packet (Bryan Phillips) 
 

C. Public Works – Request for Approval of Change Order to AC Schultes Contract for Lift 
Station 3-1 Replacement Project (Randy Gould) 

 
D. Public Works – Request for Approval of Property Exchange with Village of Pinehurst 

(Randy Gould)  
 

E. Public Works – Request for Approval of Water Purchase Agreement with Town of 
Robbins (Randy Gould) 

 
IX. APPOINTMENTS 

 
A. Fire Commission 
 
B. Sandhills Regional Library System Board of Trustees 

 
C. Aging Advisory Council 

 
X. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
XII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 DSS Board, Wednesday, November 16, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Thanksgiving Holiday, County Offices Closed, Thursday and Friday, Nov. 24 and 25 
 Aging Advisory Council, Tuesday, November 29, 8:30am (Daeke) 
 Pre-agenda, Wednesday, November 30, 9:00am 
 Organizational/Regular Mtg. & Oaths of Office/Reception, Monday, December 5, 5:30pm 
 Special Meeting (BOC Orientation/Welcome), Wednesday, December 7, 8:30am 
 CVB Board, Thursday, December 8, 4:00pm 
 Christmas Holidays, County Offices Closed, Friday, 12/23 and Monday, 12/26 
 New Year Holiday, County Offices Closed, Monday, January 2 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, January 3, closed session 4:30pm, open session 5:30pm 
 Special Meeting (Winter Retreat), Tuesday, January 11 - (maybe also Wednesday, January 12) 
 MLK, Jr. Holiday, County Offices Closed, Monday January 16 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, January 17, closed session 4:30pm, open session 5:30pm 

 
 
 
 



 3

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 
the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 
comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 
following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 
thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 
available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 
telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 
has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 
 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board members may, in their 
discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ comments.  Any response by a commissioner to 
a speaker during the public comment period does not open discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address 
all comments to the Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience will not be allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 
their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 
documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 
within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 
confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 



 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 5:30 p.m., Tuesday, 
November 1, 2016 in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room on the second floor of the Historic 
Courthouse in Carthage, North Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Jerry Daeke, Catherine Graham, Otis Ritter 
      
Commissioners Absent:  Vice Chairman Randy Saunders 
       
****************************************************************************** 
 
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  Reverend Tom Lamkin of Sandhills 
Baptist Association provided the invocation and Chief Financial Officer Caroline Xiong led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda 
items the Board would discuss during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Mr. Kevin Lewis discussed a recent personal experience and recommended the County needed 
its own crime lab.  Chairman Picerno suggested the incident be relayed to the Sheriff for 
determination of the capabilities of his office. Commissioner Graham noted that the Board had 
recently approved additional funds for such services so that the County did not have to use the 
State lab.   
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Board of Commissioners Welcome Packet 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest discussed a welcome packet that was created to orient new 
commissioners to County government.  He noted that an orientation meeting would be held on 
December 7th and he recognized Internal Auditor Tami Golden to review the divisions and 
components of the document.  Commissioner Graham requested that the packet be updated to 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.A.11/15/2016



 2

designate which employees were not paid by the County.  The commissioners thanked staff for 
developing this document, which they perceived would be very beneficial. 
 
Sandhills Center Quarterly Report 
 
Chief Financial Officer Caroline Xiong presented the quarterly financial report for Sandhills 
Center for Mental Health/Developmental Disabilities/Substance Abuse Services. 
 
Report on Ambulance Availability / Hospital Wait Times 
 
Public Safety Director Bryan Phillips provided a report regarding ambulance availability and 
hospital wait times, sharing that there had been some improvement since his last report, which he 
attributed to additional staff and beds in the emergency room.  He said the ideal turnaround time 
for an ambulance would be 20 minutes, but the County had compromised at 30 minutes as that 
seemed to be the industry standard.  The average for the summer months was 31 minutes, but 
Mr. Phillips said he was concerned this would increase with the season change and flu.  
Commissioner Graham inquired as to whether the hospital had provided anything in writing 
confirming their addition of staff, etc. and Mr. Phillips said he had only received this information 
verbally.  Commissioner Graham asked him to obtain verification in writing, with numbers.  Mr. 
Phillips’ report is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix A. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 
4-0 to approve the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: October 18, 2016 Regular Meeting  
Budget Amendment 
Ratify County Manager Signature for 2016 Urgent Repair Program Funding Agreement 
Adoption of Fair Housing Plan and Analysis of Impediments to Further Fair Housing 
FY16 Unified Hazard Mitigation Assistance Grant Program Application Notification 
 
The budget amendment is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as 
Appendix B. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Economic Development Incentive Grant Agreement 
 
Partners in Progress Executive Director Pat Corso reviewed a request for the Board to consider 
entering into an economic development grant agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC.  
Chairman Picerno opened the duly advertised public hearing regarding this matter.  There were 
no speakers.  Chairman Picerno closed the public hearing.   
 
Chairman Picerno discussed at length the math of the agreement and indicated it did not add up.  
He suggested the County simply follow its adopted incentive guideline, which ensured every 
company was treated the same.  Representatives from the Town of Aberdeen were present along 



 3

with Melanie Thompson of Partners in Progress.  The Town had approved a similar agreement 
with Reliance Packaging.  They provided input regarding the requirements of the grant and the 
need for consistent agreements.  Chairman Picerno maintained that the County’s guidelines were 
sufficient.  County Attorney Misty Leland noted that the agreement did include a cap amount of 
$27,003.  Chairman Picerno made a motion to follow the incentive package.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Daeke.  Ms. Leland said that there was language in the agreement 
that she did not initially include but added later upon request by Partners in Progress and she 
asked whether this particular language was the issue.  Chairman Picerno said he did not like that 
section.  There was further discussion by all regarding requirements and calculations.   
 
Chairman Picerno said the County would meet the grant match and he thought it was a good 
thing.  He said there just needed to be a simple agreement with anything unnecessary from a 
legal standpoint removed.  Mr. Corso concurred that there may be more language than necessary, 
but said it was what had been recommended by legal counsel.  He said they were being allowed a 
creative way to make the grant match and he would like the agreements by the County and by the 
Town to sync up.  Ms. Leland indicated it would not be a big deal if they were not the same and 
she said the paragraph she had referenced earlier could be removed.  Chairman Picerno said the 
paragraph regarding a sixth year payment needed to be removed and # 7 on page 4 of the 
agreement, regarding the calculation, needed to be stated differently.  Ms. Leland asked for 
confirmation that he would approve the agreement with these revisions.  Chairman Picerno 
amended his motion and Commissioner Daeke amended his second to the motion as follows:  
Motion to approve the agreement as amended.  Ms. Thompson asked what would happen if the 
tax rate went down and Chairman Picerno assured her this was not at all likely.  Ms. Leland said 
that, legally speaking, the changes were immaterial and if by some unlikely chance some 
scenario like that occurred, the agreement could be amended.  Chairman Picerno said the County 
would follow the agreement with the two changes noted.  Mayor Robert Farrell said he just 
wanted to be sure the legal authority for the County and Town would match.  The motion to 
approve the agreement as amended carried 4-0. 

 
Conditional Use Permit Request for Bed and Breakfast: Calico Ridge – 286 Heritage Farm 
Road 
 
Chairman Picerno announced a request by Sheryl Evans for a Conditional Use Permit for the use 
of a one-unit Bed and Breakfast and is said the hearing on this matter was judicial in nature and 
would be conducted in accordance with special due process safeguards and he reviewed the 
process.  He called for any witnesses to be sworn and Debra Ensminger and Sheryl Evans were 
administered the oath by the Clerk.  Chairman Picerno provided opportunity for Board members 
with information, special knowledge, or conflicts to reveal this and there was none.   
 
Chairman Picerno explained the proceedings and opened the duly advertised public hearing.  Ms. 
Ensminger reviewed the information about the case.  Ms. Evans provided information about her 
plans and made her request.  There were no questions following the testimony and upon motion 
made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to 
approve the Conditional Use Permit for the use of a one-unit Bed and Breakfast in a single 
family residence located at 286 Heritage Farm Road (ParID 00038405) owned by Sheryl Evans, 
as identified in Moore County tax records.  Ms. Ensminger stated that a Board order would be 



 4

prepared for approval the following regular meeting.  Chairman Picerno closed the public 
hearing.  Documents regarding the CUP request are hereby incorporated as a part of these 
minutes by attachment as Appendix B. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Finance: 
 
Request for Approval of Limited Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016 
 
Chief Finance Officer Caroline Xiong introduced a resolution regarding the Limited Obligation 
Refunding Bond, Series 2016.  She recognized John Mize (Womble, Carlisle, Sandridge & Rice) 
and Chazzo Hablistan (Davenport), who she said had been very helpful to the County.  Mr. 
Hablistan reviewed the process and information regarding the refunding bond.  Upon motion 
made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to 
approve a resolution approving and authorizing an installment contract financing by the County 
of Moore, North Carolina through the issuance of a not to exceed $24,000,000 Limited 
Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016 and the execution and delivery of a second 
Supplemental Trust Agreement and related documents in connection therewith.  The resolution is 
hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix C.  
 
* Chairman Picerno recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 6:40 p.m. for the 
time necessary to address an item before the East Moore Water District Board of Directors.  
Chairman Picerno reconvened the meeting of the Board of Commissioners at 6:42 p.m.* 
 
Public Works: 
 
Request for Approval of Change Order # 1 for Lift Station V-1 Elimination Project 
 
Public Works Director Randy Gould requested approval of a change order to the contract with 
Columbus Utilities, extending the time and increasing the contract price by $1,748.00.  Upon 
motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to 
approve Change Order # 1 to the construction contract with Columbus Utilities, Inc. 

 
Request for Approval of Settlement Agreement: Spur Road 
 
Mr. Gould asked the Board to approve a settlement agreement for the wastewater service to 20 
Spur Road, Pinehurst.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the settlement agreement with the property 
owner of 20 Spur Road. 
 
Request for Approval of Amendment to Disposal Service Agreement 
 
Solid Waste Division Manager Chad Beane asked the Board to approve an amendment to the 
disposal service agreement with Republic Services, and he reviewed options.  Upon motion 
made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to 



 5

accept an amendment to the waste disposal service agreement between Moore County and 
Republic Services of North Carolina, LLC and continue the contract for a term of seven years 
and allow the County Manager to sign any additional documents that may be needed.  A 
representative of Republic Services was present at the meeting and Chairman Picerno thanked 
her for the company’s excellent service to the County. 

 
Public Safety: 
 
Request for Approval of FY16 Homeland Security Grant Program Exercise Grant 
 
Public Safety Director Bryan Phillips requested the Board approve an agreement accepting 
$12,000 in grant funds to be used for active shooter exercises in conjunction with the Schools.  
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 
4-0 to approve for Moore County to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the NC 
Department of Crime Control and Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management for the 
grant, approve the budget amendment and allow the County Manager to sign all required 
documents upon approval from the County Attorney and Finance Director.   

 
Request for Approval of 2016 Emergency Management Performance Grant 
 
Mr. Phillips asked the Board to approve documents related to the North Carolina Emergency 
Management Performance Grant.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to approve for the County Manager to sign the 
Memorandum of Understanding, MOU amendment, cost report, and budget amendment for the 
North Carolina Emergency Management Performance Grant.   
 
The budget amendment for the two aforementioned grants is hereby incorporated as a part of 
these minutes by attachment as Appendix D. 

 
Legal: 
 
Request for Consideration of Declaratory Judgment for DSS 
 
County Attorney Misty Leland informed the Board that the DSS Board had made request for the 
commissioners to approve her office filing a court action (declaratory judgment) against the 
Fayetteville Observer regarding a public records request for the release of the Durham Report as 
it relates to the Rylan Ott matter.  Commissioner Graham made a motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Daeke, to authorize the County Attorney’s Office to file a court action against the 
Fayetteville Observer regarding the release of the Durham Report as it relates to the Rylan Ott 
matter.  Chairman Picerno said this action was not stating that the Board was not willing to 
release the information, but rather that it wanted the court to review and determine whether it 
was subject to laws that would prevent its release.  Ms. Leland concurred, saying the report was 
so fact specific that her office did not believe it could be released without violating the law.  
Commissioner Graham said this was a proactive rather than reactive approach.  She also said that 
since criminal action could be involved, she would like to be sure the District Attorney was 
notified.  Ms. Leland agreed.  The motion authorizing the court action was approved 4-0. 



 6

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest provided an update on Hurricane Matthew disaster recovery.  He 
reported that FEMA would be in Moore County for the next couple of weeks.  He shared that 
DSS had accepted applications for assistance for a brief period the week prior, working over the 
weekend, and that they saw approximately 900 clients and approved 763 applications for 
benefits.   
 
Mr. Vest commented on the annual employee celebration held earlier in the day, saying it was 
very good and complimenting the Department of Aging staff for hosting it.  He also reminded 
everyone of the hurricane responder recognition event scheduled for the coming Saturday at 
Hillcrest Park.  Chairman Picerno asked Mr. Vest to be sure the National Guard and other 
outside agency responders were invited. 

 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
Commissioner Ritter shared that he would be unable to attend the November 15, 2016 regular 
meeting, which would be Chairman Picerno and Vice Chairman Saunders’ last regular meeting 
on the Board.  He said it had been great serving with the two of them, that the commissioners got 
along very well, and that he appreciated that.  Commissioner Ritter said a good friend would give 
you the shirt off his back and he presented Chairman Picerno with a campaign shirt that he had 
received from him a few years prior.  He said he wanted to see Chairman Picerno wear it again in 
another venture.   
 
Commissioner Graham complimented Chairman Picerno on his handling of the proceedings of 
the two Boards (BOC and EMWD) for the evening. 
 
Chairman Picerno said he was looking forward to the recognition event on Saturday.   
He apologized for being difficult on the economic development incentive item and reminded the 
commissioners of how he felt about these incentives. 
He referenced a comment he had read in The Pilot about gas prices and asked whether the 
County had heard anything from the State Attorney General’s Office in response to an inquiry 
made months earlier.  Mr. Vest said no.  Chairman Picerno said the County did its due diligence, 
but had received no answer and had no authority on gas prices. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to adjourn the November 1, 2016 regular meeting of 
the Moore County Board of Commissioners at 7:04 p.m. 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
____________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk 



Calico Ridge Bed & Breakfast – Board Order– Staff Report 

Agenda Item: ____ 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  November 4, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Calico Ridge Board Order Approval 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of the Calico Ridge Board Order for the use of a Bed & Breakfast approved by the 
Board of Commissioners during their regularly scheduled meeting on November 1st, 2016. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Board of Commissioners held a public hearing for a Conditional Use Permit request for the 
use of a Bed & Breakfast at 268 Heritage Farm Road, owned by Robert and Sheryl Evans, as 
identified in Moore County tax records. 
 
The Board of Commissioners unanimously (4-0) approved the Conditional Use Permit for the 
use of a Bed & Breakfast.  

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Upon approval the Conditional Use Permit will be issued. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
No financial impact to the County FY 2016-2017 budget.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Make a motion to approve the Calico Ridge Board Order and allow the Chairman to sign. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Calico Ridge Board Order 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.B.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  BEFORE THE MOORE COUNTY 
  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
COUNTY OF MOORE  FILE NO.: ________________ ____ 
 
Applicant: Sheryl Evans      ) ORDER OF FINDINGS OF FACT AND  
               ) CONCLUSIONS IN SUPPORT OF  
ParID #     00038405       ) GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
               ) PERMIT 
       
 
THIS CAUSE, being heard by the Moore County Board of Commissioners on November 1, 2016 
at 5:30 p.m. in the Historic Courthouse, 2nd Floor Meeting Room, Carthage, NC for a hearing on 
Sheryl Evan’s application for a Conditional Use Permit. It appearing that the Moore County 
Board of Commissioners has proper jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter and that the 
parties are properly before the Moore County Board of Commissioners. After reviewing the 
documents of record and hearing from all parties and witnesses, the Board of Commissioners by 
sufficient evidence, based on the standards and Unified Development Ordinance of Moore 
County, NC enters the following order. 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That all parties were notified of the hearing. 
2. That all witnesses were sworn and testified. 
3. That the applicant requests the use of a one-unit Bed & Breakfast in a single family 

residence.  
4. That the property is zoned Residential and Agricultural-40 (RA-40) and allows the proposed 

use upon issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. 
5. That the proposed site details are as follows: 
 

Zoning Residential and Agricultural-40 (RA-40) 
Acreage Approximately 19.24 acres 
Watershed WS-III-BW Little River (Vass) 
Highway Corridor Overlay No  
Floodplain No  
Historical Use Single Family Residential 

 
 

 



2 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact the Moore County Board of Commissioners makes the 
following Conclusions with respect to the requested conditional use: 

1. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed 
and developed according to plan; 

2. The use meets all required conditions and specifications;  
3. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless the 

use is a public necessity; 
4. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as submitted and 

approved, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and will be in 
general conformity with the approved Moore County Land Use Plan.  

 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED: 

 
The Conditional Use Permit request of Sheryl Evans is hereby GRANTED for the reasons stated 
above. The Conditional Use Permit shall expire twelve (12) months from the date of issuance 
unless the proposed development is pursued as set forth in the Moore County Unified 
Development Ordinance. Continued compliance with the original site plan and this permit issued 
by the Board shall entitle applicants to the continued use of the property.  
 
A copy of these FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS shall be filed with the Clerk of the County 
of Moore, and a copy of such order shall be served by first-class mail to the applicant Sheryl 
Evans and shall be served by first-class mail requested upon any person specifically requesting 
service of the same.   
 
So ORDERED this the 15th day of November, 2016.  
       ________________________ 
       Nick Picerno, Chair 
       Moore County Board of Commissioners  
Attest:  ______________________________ 
 Laura Williams, Clerk to the Board 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.C.11/15/2016

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text













clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.D.11/15/2016



















































































































































































































Agenda Item: 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM: Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney 
 
DATE:  November 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Well Site 11 
 
REQUEST: 
Adopt a resolution accepting the negotiated offer of $2,000 for certain real property known as Well 
Site 11, having Parcel ID/LRK #00991601 and authorizing the upset bid process. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County acquired by warranty deed certain real property upon which it operated a well referred to 
as Well Site 11.  Since that time the County has abandoned the well pursuant to the standards of the 
North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality and the property is no longer in use.   
 
The property is located within the community of Seven Lakes West; however, the property is not 
considered a part of the community, lacks an easement for ingress and egress, and does not grant the 
owner access to the amenities provided by the community of Seven Lakes West.   
 
Via a letter dated November 4, 2016, the County received an offer for Well Site 11 in the amount of 
$2,000 from the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association.  According to the Moore County Tax 
Department, the property has an appraised land value of $8,400.  The property previously had a total 
appraised value of $14,080; however, a well house with an appraised building value of $5,680 was 
removed by the County, leaving only the land. 
 
As part of the transaction, the purchaser will be required to hold the County harmless against any and 
all claims or damages that may arise as the result of acquiring or owning the property. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
After adopting the Resolution, the County will begin the upset bid process.  The Clerk to the Board 
will advertise the negotiated offer and upset bid process.  The bid process will continue until a 10-
day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the 
amount of the final high bid will be reported to the Board of Commissioners.  The County Board of 
Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30 
days after the final upset bid period has passed.  Closing on the sale of the property will occur within 
30 days of approval of the final high offer.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Selling the property will generate a minimum of $2,000 in one-time revenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to adopt the attached resolution acknowledging receipt of the offer of $2,000.00 and 
authorizing the upset bid process, and authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.E.



SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Well Site 11 
2. Map of Property 
3. Public Notice  



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE UPSET BID PROCESS 
FOR WELL SITE 11 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Moore owns certain real property located at 416 Longleaf Dr., Seven Lakes, 

Moore County, North Carolina, being known and more particularly described as Well Site 11 and having 
Parcel ID/LRK #00991601; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property was acquired by the Moore Water and Sewer Authority (“MOWASA”) on 
December 10, 1990, for the purposes of operating a water system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property was transferred to the County by MOWASA on October 1, 1999; and 
 
WHEREAS, since that time, the County has abandoned the well pursuant to the standards of the North 

Carolina Department of Environmental Quality and the property is not presently in use; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of the transaction, the purchaser will be required to hold the County harmless against 

any and all claims or damages that may arise as the result of acquiring or owning the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property is located within the community of Seven Lakes West; however, the property 

is not considered a part of the community, lacks an easement for ingress and egress, and does not grant the 
owner access to the amenities provided by the community of Seven Lakes West; and 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160A-269 permits the County to sell real property by 

negotiated offer and upset bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners acknowledges receipt of an offer from the Seven Lakes West 

Landowners Association in the amount of $2,000.00 for the property described above; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association has paid the required five percent deposit 
on its offer. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Moore resolves that: 

 
1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset 

bid procedure of North Carolina General Statute 160A-269; and 
 
2. The Clerk to the Board shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published.  The notice shall 

describe the property and the amount of the offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer 
may be upset; and 

 
3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer 

to the office of Clerk to the Board within 10 days after the notice of sale is published.  At the 
conclusion of the 10-day period, the Clerk to the Board shall open the bids, if any, and the 
highest such bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, 
the first such bid received will become the new offer.  In order for a bid to be considered, the 
bidder must be current on payment of all property taxes owed to the County; and 

 
4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Clerk to the Board shall cause a new notice of upset bid 

to be published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without any 



qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be 
reported to the Board of Commissioners; and 

 
5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of 

the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer; and 
 

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent 
(5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified check.  The 
County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer 
subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received.  The County will return the deposit of the 
final high bidder at closing; and 

 
7. The terms of the final sale are: 

 
 The property is sold in its current condition, as is, and the County gives no warranty with 

respect to usability of the property; and  
 The County must approve the final high bid before the sale is closed; and 
 Closing will occur within 30 days of approval of the final bid at the  Office of the Moore 

County Attorney; and  
 The Buyer is responsible for ad valorem taxes for the current year (non-prorated); and 
 The Buyer must pay with cash, by cashier’s check or by certified check at the time of the 

closing. 
 

8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high 
bid is approved and the right to reject at any time all bids; and 

 
9. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is 

hereby accepted.  The appropriate county officials are authorized to execute the instruments 
necessary to convey the property to the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association. 

 
ADOPTED this 15th day of November, 2016, by the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 

 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 



11/7/2016 ConnectGIS Feature Report

http://mooregisweb.moorecountync.gov/ConnectGIS_v6/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map7b1727f861a84702b59e3bdda1c38ee9x.htm&t=print 1/1

Moore_mgd
Printed November 07, 2016

See Below for Disclaimer

GIS DISCLAIMER All the information contained on this media is prepared for the inventory of real property found within Moore County. All data is compiled from
recorded deeds, plats, and other public records and data. Users of this data are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be
consulted for verification of the information. All information contained herein was created for the County's internal use. Moore County, its agents and employees make
NO warranty as to the correctness or accuracy of the information set forth on this media whether express or implied, in fact or in law, including without limitation the
implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular use. Any resale of this data is strictly prohibited in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 132‐
10. Grid is based on North Carolina State Plane Coordinate System NAD83 ﴾feet﴿.



PUBLIC NOTICE 
SALE OF COUNTY PROPERTY 

WELL SITE 11 
 

An offer of $2,000 has been submitted for the purchase of certain property owned by the 
County of Moore known Well Site 11, having Parcel ID/LRK #00991601, which is located at 
416 Longleaf Dr., Seven Lakes, Moore County, North Carolina, and more particularly described 
as follows: 

 
Beginning at a stake in the eastern right of way line of Longleaf 
Road, said stake being located S 40°18'56”E 62.96 feet from an 
established concrete monument situated in the western line of 
Longleaf Road in the line of 5594, Willowhaven Section, as shown 
on plat recorded in Plat Cabinet 1, Slide 183-B, Moore County 
Registry, running thence S 51°59’37”E 231.24 feet to a stake, 
thence S 38°00'23”W 200 feet to a stake, thence N 51°59’37”W 
237.24 feet to a stake in the eastern right of way of Longleaf Road; 
thence with the eastern line of Longleaf Road, and as the curvature 
thereof to the left, said curve having a radius of 1,077.54 feet, N 
38°00'23”E 200 feet to the beginning, and containing 1.08 acres, 
more or less. 
 

This description comes from the instrument recorded at Deed Book 755, Page 114, of the Moore 
County Registry.  The instrument transferring the property to the County is recorded in Deed 
Book 1556, Page 98, of the Moore County Registry. 
 
 The Property is located within the community of Seven Lakes West; however, the 
property is not considered a part of the community, lacks an easement for ingress and 
egress, and does not grant the owner access to the amenities provided by the community of 
Seven Lakes West. 
 
 Please be aware that this is an abandoned well site, which has been abandoned 
pursuant to the standards of the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality.  
As part of the transaction, the purchaser will be required to hold the County harmless 
against any and all claims or damages that may arise as the result of acquiring or owning 
the property.  
 

Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their 
offer to the office of the Clerk to the Board, 1 Courthouse Square, Carthage, NC 28327, by 5:00 
P.M., November 30, 2016.  At that time the clerk to the board shall open the bids, if any, and the 
highest qualifying bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one bid in the highest 
amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

 
A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer to an amount not less than $2,150.  

In order for a bid to be considered, the bidder must be current on payment of all property taxes 
owed to the County.   



             
A qualifying higher bid must be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) 

of the bid.  The deposit must be made in cash, by cashier’s check, or by certified check.  The 
County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer 
subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received.  If the final high bidder refuses at any time 
to close sale, their deposit will be forfeited to the County. 

 
The process of advertising and accepting upset bids will continue until a 10-day period has 

passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the 
final high bid will be reported to the Board of Commissioners. 

 
The County Board of Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the sale is 

closed, which it will do within 30 days after the final upset bid period has passed.  The County 
reserves the right to reject any and all bids at any time. 

 
The buyer must pay with cash, by cashier’s check, or by certified check at closing. 
 
Inquiries about the property and the sale may be made to the Clerk to the Board, 1 

Courthouse Square, Carthage, NC, or at telephone (910) 947-4006 during normal business hours. 



Agenda Item: 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM: Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney 
 
DATE:  November 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Well Site 8 
 
REQUEST: 
Adopt a resolution accepting the negotiated offer of $2,000 for certain real property known as Well 
Site 8, having Parcel ID/LRK #00991604 and authorizing the upset bid process. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County acquired by warranty deed certain real property upon which it operated a well referred to 
as Well Site 8.  Since that time the County has abandoned the well pursuant to the standards of the 
North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality and the property is no longer in use.   
 
The property is located within the community of Seven Lakes West; however, the property is not 
considered a part of the community, lacks an easement for ingress and egress, and does not grant the 
owner access to the amenities provided by the community of Seven Lakes West.   
 
Via a letter dated November 4, 2016, the County received an offer for Well Site 8 in the amount of 
$2,000 from the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association.  According to the Moore County Tax 
Department, the property has an appraised land value of $33,250.  The property previously had a 
total appraised value of $38,930; however, a well house with an appraised building value of $5,680 
was removed by the County, leaving only the land. 
 
As part of the transaction, the purchaser will be required to hold the County harmless against any and 
all claims or damages that may arise as the result of acquiring or owning the property. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
After adopting the Resolution, the County will begin the upset bid process.  The Clerk to the Board 
will advertise the negotiated offer and upset bid process.  The bid process will continue until a 10-
day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the 
amount of the final high bid will be reported to the Board of Commissioners.  The County Board of 
Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30 
days after the final upset bid period has passed.  Closing on the sale of the property will occur within 
30 days of approval of the final high offer.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Selling the property will generate a minimum of $2,000 in one-time revenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to adopt the attached resolution acknowledging receipt of the offer of $2,000.00 and 
authorizing the upset bid process, and authorize the Chairman to sign all necessary documents. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.F.



SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Well Site 8 
2. Map of Property 
3. Public Notice  



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE UPSET BID PROCESS 
FOR WELL SITE 8 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Moore owns certain real property located at 486 Longleaf Dr., Seven Lakes, 

Moore County, North Carolina, being known and more particularly described as Well Site 8 and having 
Parcel ID/LRK #00991604; and 
 

WHEREAS, the property was acquired by the Moore Water and Sewer Authority (“MOWASA”) on 
December 10, 1990, for the purposes of operating a water system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property was transferred to the County by MOWASA on October 1, 1999; and 
 
WHEREAS, since that time, the County has abandoned the well pursuant to the standards of the North 

Carolina Department of Environmental Quality and the property is not presently in use; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of the transaction, the purchaser will be required to hold the County harmless against 

any and all claims or damages that may arise as the result of acquiring or owning the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property is located within the community of Seven Lakes West; however, the property 

is not considered a part of the community, lacks an easement for ingress and egress, and does not grant the 
owner access to the amenities provided by the community of Seven Lakes West; and 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160A-269 permits the County to sell real property by 

negotiated offer and upset bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners acknowledges receipt of an offer from the Seven Lakes West 

Landowners Association in the amount of $2,000.00 for the property described above; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association has paid the required five percent deposit 
on its offer. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Moore resolves that: 

 
1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset 

bid procedure of North Carolina General Statute 160A-269; and 
 
2. The Clerk to the Board shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published.  The notice shall 

describe the property and the amount of the offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer 
may be upset; and 

 
3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer 

to the office of Clerk to the Board within 10 days after the notice of sale is published.  At the 
conclusion of the 10-day period, the Clerk to the Board shall open the bids, if any, and the 
highest such bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, 
the first such bid received will become the new offer.  In order for a bid to be considered, the 
bidder must be current on payment of all property taxes owed to the County; and 

 
4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Clerk to the Board shall cause a new notice of upset bid 

to be published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has passed without any 



qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be 
reported to the Board of Commissioners; and 

 
5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of 

the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that offer; and 
 

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent 
(5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or certified check.  The 
County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer 
subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received.  The County will return the deposit of the 
final high bidder at closing; and 

 
7. The terms of the final sale are: 

 
 The property is sold in its current condition, as is, and the County gives no warranty with 

respect to usability of the property; and  
 The County must approve the final high bid before the sale is closed; and 
 Closing will occur within 30 days of approval of the final bid at the  Office of the Moore 

County Attorney; and  
 The Buyer is responsible for ad valorem taxes for the current year (non-prorated); and 
 The Buyer must pay with cash, by cashier’s check or by certified check at the time of the 

closing. 
 

8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high 
bid is approved and the right to reject at any time all bids; and 

 
9. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is 

hereby accepted.  The appropriate county officials are authorized to execute the instruments 
necessary to convey the property to the Seven Lakes West Landowners Association. 

 
ADOPTED this 15th day of November, 2016, by the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 

 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 



11/7/2016 ConnectGIS Feature Report

http://mooregisweb.moorecountync.gov/ConnectGIS_v6/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map2e97e7a5106d4caebb7925fd07a9ea0ex.htm&t=print 1/1

Moore_mgd
Printed November 07, 2016

See Below for Disclaimer

GIS DISCLAIMER All the information contained on this media is prepared for the inventory of real property found within Moore County. All data is compiled from
recorded deeds, plats, and other public records and data. Users of this data are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be
consulted for verification of the information. All information contained herein was created for the County's internal use. Moore County, its agents and employees make
NO warranty as to the correctness or accuracy of the information set forth on this media whether express or implied, in fact or in law, including without limitation the
implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular use. Any resale of this data is strictly prohibited in accordance with North Carolina General Statute 132‐
10. Grid is based on North Carolina State Plane Coordinate System NAD83 ﴾feet﴿.



PUBLIC NOTICE 
SALE OF COUNTY PROPERTY 

WELL SITE 8 
 

An offer of $2,000 has been submitted for the purchase of certain property owned by the 
County of Moore known Well Site 8, having Parcel ID/LRK #00991604, which is located at 486 
Longleaf Dr., Seven Lakes, Moore County, North Carolina, and more particularly described as 
follows: 

 
Beginning at a stake in the eastern line of Longleaf Road, a private 
road, said stake being N 26°59’52”E 150.02 feet from the common 
corner of Lots 5574 and 5575 in the western line of Longleaf 
Road, running thence with the eastern line of Longleaf Road 
N03°25’22”E 200 feet to a stake; thence S 86°34’38” 208.58 feet 
to stake; thence S 03°2’22”W 200 feet to a stake; thence N 
86°34’38”W 208.58 feet to the Beginning, and containing 41,717 
sq. feet, more or less. 
 

This description comes from the instrument recorded at Deed Book 755, Page 112, of the Moore 
County Registry.  The instrument transferring the property to the County is recorded in Deed 
Book 1556, Page 98, of the Moore County Registry. 
 
 The Property is located within the community of Seven Lakes West; however, the 
property is not considered a part of the community, lacks an easement for ingress and 
egress, and does not grant the owner access to the amenities provided by the community of 
Seven Lakes West. 
 
 Please be aware that this is an abandoned well site, which has been abandoned 
pursuant to the standards of the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality.  
As part of the transaction, the purchaser will be required to hold the County harmless 
against any and all claims or damages that may arise as the result of acquiring or owning 
the property.  
 

Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their 
offer to the office of the Clerk to the Board, 1 Courthouse Square, Carthage, NC 28327, by 5:00 
P.M., November 30, 2016.  At that time the clerk to the board shall open the bids, if any, and the 
highest qualifying bid will become the new offer.  If there is more than one bid in the highest 
amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer. 

 
A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer to an amount not less than $2,150.  

In order for a bid to be considered, the bidder must be current on payment of all property taxes 
owed to the County.   

             
A qualifying higher bid must be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) 

of the bid.  The deposit must be made in cash, by cashier’s check, or by certified check.  The 
County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer 



subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received.  If the final high bidder refuses at any time 
to close sale, their deposit will be forfeited to the County. 

 
The process of advertising and accepting upset bids will continue until a 10-day period has 

passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At that time, the amount of the 
final high bid will be reported to the Board of Commissioners. 

 
The County Board of Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the sale is 

closed, which it will do within 30 days after the final upset bid period has passed.  The County 
reserves the right to reject any and all bids at any time. 

 
The buyer must pay with cash, by cashier’s check, or by certified check at closing. 
 
Inquiries about the property and the sale may be made to the Clerk to the Board, 1 

Courthouse Square, Carthage, NC, or at telephone (910) 947-4006 during normal business hours. 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  11/15/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 11/7/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting the High Bid for County-Owned Property Located on 

Central Drive/NC Highway 22 in Southern Pines 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Adopt resolution accepting the high bid for certain real property owned by the County located off 
Central Drive/NC Hwy 22 in Southern Pines and having Parcel ID/LRK #99000385. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On October 18, 2016, the Board adopted a resolution accepting an offer and initiating the upset bid 
process for the Central Drive/Hwy 22 property.  The offer was made by Sandhills Children’s Center 
in the amount of $269,000.   
 
The upset bid process has been completed and no additional offers were received. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE / FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Selling the property will generate $269,000 upon completion of the sale. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Closing on the sale of the property will occur within 30 days of acceptance of the high bid. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to adopt the attached resolution accepting the high bid of $269,000 and authorize the 
Chairman to sign all necessary documents. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.G.



RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE HIGH BID FOR THE CENTRAL DR./HWY 22 PROPERTY 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Moore owns certain real property located off Central Drive/NC Hwy 22 in 
Southern Pines and having Parcel ID # 99000385; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners received an offer from Sandhills Children’s Center in the amount 
of $269,000 for the property described above; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County then followed the North Carolina General Statutes with regards to the upset bid 
process and received no further offers. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of the County of Moore resolves that the high bid made 
by Sandhills Children’s Center is hereby accepted for the parcel of property described above and the 
Chairman shall execute the documents necessary to transfer title of the property in accordance with the 
conditions previously identified. 
 
Adopted this 15th day of November 2016. 
 
 
                COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
 
                ________________________________ 
                Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
                Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.H.

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text









  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  11/15/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
     
   
FROM: Caroline Ly Xiong, Chief Finance Officer 
  
DATE: 11/07/16 
  
SUBJECT: Limited Obligation Bonds (EMWD), Series 2016  
 
PRESENTER:  Caroline Ly Xiong 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the resolution approving and authorizing an installment contract financing by the County of 
Moore, North Carolina through the issuance of not to exceed $10,000,000 Limited Obligation Bonds 
(East Moore Water District), Series 2016 and the execution and delivery of a trust agreement and 
related documents in connection therewith. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
On November 1st, 2016, the EMWD Board of Directors introduced and approved the bond order 
authorizing $10,000,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds for providing funds to refund all or a 
portion of the District’s outstanding Water Bond, Series 2003, Water Bond, Series 2008A and Water 
Bond, Series 2008B. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE / FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The issuance of the Limited Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 through a public sale with 
Robert W. Baird & Co as the Underwriter.  The proceeds of such bonds will be used to acquire 
District’s G.O. Refunding Bonds. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
The Chairman of the Board, the County Manager and the Chief Finance Officer will be authorized to 
execute and deliver the Trust Agreement, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Official Statement and 
the Bonds on behalf of the County.   
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the resolution approving and authorizing an installment contract financing 
by the County of Moore, North Carolina through the issuance of not to exceed $10,000,000 Limited 
Obligation Bonds (East Moore Water District), Series 2016 and the execution and delivery of a trust 
agreement and related documents in connection therewith. 
 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.A.



ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 



The Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, North Carolina met in a regular 
meeting in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Second Floor of the Historic Courthouse located 
at 1 Courthouse Square in Carthage, North Carolina, the regular place of meeting, at 5:30 p.m. 
on November 15, 2016. 

Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, presiding, and Commissioners  

  

Absent:  Commissioners  

  

Also Present:    

  

*     *     *     *     *     * 

_____________________ introduced the following resolution, the title of which was read 
and a copy of which had been previously distributed to each Commissioner: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING AN INSTALLMENT 
CONTRACT FINANCING BY THE COUNTY OF MOORE, NORTH 
CAROLINA THROUGH THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$10,000,000 LIMITED OBLIGATION BONDS (EAST MOORE WATER 
DISTRICT), SERIES 2016 AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
A TRUST AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) for the County of 
Moore, North Carolina (the “County”): 

Section 1.  The Board does hereby find and determine as follows: 

(a) Pursuant to Article 6 of Chapter 162A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as 
amended (the “District Act”), the County has created a water district within the County known as 
East Moore Water District (the “District”), which is a municipal corporation and body corporate 
and politic under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “State”) and authorized by the laws 
of the State, including, without limitation, The Local Government Bond Act, Article 4 of 
Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, as amended (the “General Obligation 
Bonds Act”) to authorize and issue general obligation bonds to finance the cost of water 
improvements in its jurisdiction. 

(b) The District has heretofore authorized and issued multiple series of its general 
obligation bonds (the “Refunded District Bonds”) in order to finance water improvements, and 
the Refunded District Bonds bear interest at a rate that is higher than the interest rates available 



2 

in the current financial markets and the District can realize significant interest savings from 
refunding all or a portion of the outstanding amount of the Refunded District Bonds. 

(c) Pursuant to Section 160A-20 of the General Statutes of North Carolina (as amended, 
the “Act”), the County may finance the purchase of real or personal property by contracts that 
create a security interest in the property so acquired to secure repayment of the moneys advanced 
or made available for such purchase.  The County has developed a plan of finance under which 
(1) the District will authorize and issue general obligation refunding bonds (the “District 
Refunding Bonds”) to refund its Refunded District Bonds, such District Refunding Bonds to be 
purchased by the County, and (2) the County will enter into a Trust Agreement, to be dated as of 
December 1, 2016 (the “Trust Agreement”), between the County and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), providing for the issuance by the County of Limited 
Obligation Bonds (East Moore Water District), Series 2016 (the “Bonds”) to provide funds to the 
County for the purpose of financing the purchase of the District Refunding Bonds and (3) the 
County will pledge the District Refunding Bonds, which is the property acquired in the 
financing, to secure payment of the Bonds. 

(d) The Bonds will initially be sold to Robert W. Baird & Co. (the “Underwriter”) 
pursuant to the terms of a Bond Purchase Agreement, to be dated the date of delivery thereof (the 
“Bond Purchase Agreement”), between the County and the Underwriter. 

(e) In connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds by the Underwriter, there will 
be prepared and distributed to potential investors a Preliminary Official Statement, to be dated as 
of the date of delivery thereof (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), relating to the offering and 
sale of the Bonds, and the Official Statement (hereinafter defined). 

(f) There have been presented to the Board drafts of the following documents relating to 
the transaction hereinabove described: 

(1) the Trust Agreement; 

(2) the Bond Purchase Agreement; and 

(3) the Preliminary Official Statement. 

Section 2.  The County is hereby authorized to enter into the Trust Agreement and to 
issue the Bonds thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $10,000,000.  The Bonds shall 
mature, shall bear interest at such rates, and shall be subject to optional and mandatory sinking 
fund redemption as set forth in the Trust Agreement.  The Bonds shall bear interest at such 
interest rates or yields that, together with the sale prices to that County described in Section 3, 
shall result in an effective interest cost to the County of not to exceed 4.20% per annum.  The 
final maturity of the Bonds shall not be later than December 31, 2046. 

Section 3.  The Bonds shall be sold to the Underwriter pursuant to the Bond Purchase 
Agreement.  The Bonds may be sold to the Underwriter at a discount below the amount of the 
principal amount of the Bonds, such discount not to exceed 2.00% of the principal amount of the 
Bonds; provided, however, that if all or any of the Bonds are to be sold to the public by the 



3 

Underwriter at original issue discount (resulting in lower interest costs of the interest component 
of the debt service payments on the Bonds), then the Bonds may be sold at a further discount in 
the amount necessary to cover such original issue discount. 

Section 4.  The Board hereby approves the forms of the Trust Agreement, the Bond 
Purchase Agreement and the Bonds in substantially the forms presented at this meeting.  The 
Chairman of the Board, the County Manager and the Chief Finance Officer are each hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement, the Bond Purchase Agreement and the 
Bonds on behalf of the County in substantially the forms presented at this meeting, containing 
such insertions, deletions and filling in of blanks as the person executing such documents shall 
approve, such execution to be conclusive evidence of approval by the Board of any such 
changes.  The Clerk to the Board or any assistant or deputy Clerk to the Board is hereby 
authorized to affix the official seal of the County to said documents and to attest the same to the 
extent required. 

Section 5.  No deficiency judgment may be rendered against the County in any action for 
breach of any contractual obligation with respect to the Bonds or under the Trust Agreement, and 
the taxing power of the County is not and may not be pledged directly or indirectly to secure any 
moneys due with respect to the Bonds or under the Trust Agreement. 

Section 6.  The Board hereby approves the form of the Preliminary Official Statement 
presented at this meeting and hereby approves the distribution thereof by the Underwriter in 
connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds.  Upon the sale of the Bonds to the 
Underwriter, a final Official Statement, to be dated as of the date of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement (the “Official Statement”), will be prepared substantially in the form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement and will contain such information relating to the pricing terms of 
the Bonds and such additional information as may be necessary.  The Board hereby approves the 
delivery of the Official Statement by the County and the distribution thereof by the Underwriter 
in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds. 

Section 7.  The Chairman of the Board, the County Manager, the Chief Finance Officer 
and the Clerk to the Board, and any other officers, agents and employees of the County, are 
hereby authorized and directed to deliver such certificates, opinions and other items of evidence 
as shall be deemed necessary to consummate the transactions described above. 

Section 8.  The County Manager and the Chief Finance Officer of the County are hereby 
authorized to cooperate with the Underwriter in preparing and filing such filings under state 
securities or “blue sky” laws as the Underwriter may request; provided, however, that the County 
shall not be required to consent to the jurisdiction of any state in which it is not now subject 
unless the County Attorney shall determine that such consent is in the best interest of the 
County. 

Section 9.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Upon motion of Commissioner _________________, seconded by Commissioner 
__________________, the foregoing resolution entitled “RESOLUTION APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING AN INSTALLMENT CONTRACT FINANCING BY THE COUNTY OF 



4 

MOORE, NORTH CAROLINA THROUGH THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$10,000,000 LIMITED OBLIGATION BONDS (EAST MOORE WATER DISTRICT), 
SERIES 2016 AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A TRUST AGREEMENT AND 
RELATED DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH” was passed by the following 
vote: 

Ayes:   

  

Noes:   

  

*     *     *     *     *     * 

I, Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, 
North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of so much of the 
proceedings of said Board of Commissioners for said County at a regular meeting held on 
November 15, 2016, as it relates in any way to the adoption of foregoing resolution and that said 
proceedings are recorded in the minutes of said Board of Commissioners. 

I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that proper notice of such regular meeting was 
given as required by North Carolina law. 

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of said County this 15th day of November, 2016. 

[SEAL]   
Clerk to the Board 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.B.





































  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  11/15/16 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:   November 3, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Change Order Number 1 
   Lift Station 3-1 Replacement Project 
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST:  
Approve Change Order Number 1 to the construction contract with AC Schultes of Carolina for the Lift 
Station 3-1 Replacement Project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The 3-1 Lift Station in the Gun Club in Pinehurst receives wastewater from a portion of the 
development in Pinehurst and the fast growing corridor along Murdocksville Road.  
 
The start of construction was delayed by the County due to the bypass pumping operations, delivery 
date of the pump station and allowance for holidays.  It will be to the County’s advantage not to have 
the station of service during the holidays. 
 
The original contract stipulates that the project must be substantially complete within 240 days and 
fully complete within 240 days.  We recommend that the contract fully completion date be extended 
by 88 days established as March 31, 2017. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve Change Order Number 1 and authorize for execution.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
No change.  
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve Change Order Number 1 to the construction contract with AC Schultes of 
Carolina.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Change Order Number 1 
October 21 letter from AC Schultes Utilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I:Public Works/Wastewater/3-1 Pump Station/ Agenda Items/Memo to Board 111516 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.C.







 Agenda Item:   
 Meeting Date: November 1, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM: Randy G. Gould, Public Works Director  
 
DATE: October 24, 2016, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Property Exchange with the Village of Pinehurst 
 
PRESENTER: Randy G. Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST: 

This is a request for the Moore County Board of Commissioners to approve the attached 
Warranty Deed transferring property shown as Area A on the attached map from Moore County to 
Pinehurst.  In addition, the Board is requested to accept the attached Warranty Deed transferring 
property shown as Area B on the map from the Village of Pinehurst to the County.  The transfer to 
the County also includes various utility easements from the Village to the County. 
 
BACKGROUND:   

The County of Moore’s lease for the land used for our Storage Yard on Rattlesnake Road will 
expire on July 1, 2017.  The County identified a site owned by the Village of Pinehurst on Juniper 
Lake Road which would be a suitable replacement.  It is proposed to exchange a small perimeter 
portion of the County’s Ground Storage tank property for a portion of Pinehurst’s property on 
Juniper Lake Road.  

 
The County’s parcel is approximately 0.71 acres with an estimated tax value at $65,660.   The 

Village’s parcel is approximately 4.16 acres and has an estimated value of $45,430.  Both parties 
agree these values may not be accurate and reliable. 

   
Pursuant to NCGS § 160A-274, the County and Village are permitted to exchange real property 

upon the approval of their respective governing body. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:   

None. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

Make a motion to approve the Warranty Deed transferring the property shown as Area A on the 
map from the County of Moore to the Village of Pinehurst and to accept the Warranty Deed 
transferring the property shown as Area B on the plat map from the Village of Pinehurst to the 
County of Moore and to accept the utility easements upon Village property.  Finally, authorize the 
Chairman to sign all necessary documents. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Maps of Property Lines Prior to and After the Exchange 
2. Warranty Deed from the County of Moore to the Village of Pinehurst 
3. Warranty Deed from the Village of Pinehurst to the County of Moore 

I: Public Works/Pinehurst/Land Swap/Memo to Board Land Swap 110116 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.D.







  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  12/06/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:                       November 8, 2016    
 
SUBJECT:  Water Purchase Agreements with the Town of Robbins  
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the Water Purchase Agreements with the Town of Robbins for the Westmoore School Line 
and the Davis Center Line for a price of $4.00 per thousand gallons and $5.00 per month for the 
master meter. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners approved the water purchase agreement with The Town 
of Robbins on June 17, 2014.  The contract expired on June 30 of this year and needs to be renewed.  
The Town approved the agreement at their meeting on November 10, 2016. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve agreement and forward to the Town of Robbins. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Cost is unchanged at $4.00 per thousand and $5.00 per month for the master meter. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the Water Purchase Agreements with the Town of Robbins for the 
Westmoore School Line and the Davis Center Line for a price of $4.00 per thousand gallons and 
$5.00 per month for the master meter. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Water Purchase Contract 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.E.



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
MOORE COUNTY 

 
WATER PURCHASE CONTRACT 

(Davis Center and Westmoore School Waterlines) 
 

THIS CONTRACT (the “Contract”) for the sale and purchase of water is entered into as 
of the ____ day of ___________________, 2016, between the TOWN OF ROBBINS 
(hereinafter referred to as “Seller”), and the COUNTY OF MOORE (hereinafter referred to as 
“Purchaser”). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Purchaser is a body politic duly organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of North Carolina; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Seller is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the 
laws of the State of North Carolina; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Purchaser has installed or caused to be installed two waterlines, which 
are described as follows: 
 

A. Beginning at the intersections of North Broad and Middleton Streets in the Town of 
Robbins and running in a northerly direction along NC Highway 705 (hereinafter the 
“Davis Center Waterline”) from the Town of Robbins (CDBG Project No. 98-C-0475); 
and 
 

B. Beginning at the intersection of Spies Road (SR 1002) and Browns Mills Road (SR 
1425), running northeast until intersecting with NC Highway 705 and proceeding 
northwest to Westmoore Elementary School (hereinafter the “Westmoore School 
Waterline”). 

 
These two waterlines are collectively referred to herein as the “Waterlines”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Purchaser has installed, or caused to be installed, the necessary meters, 
vaults, piping and other facilities associated with the Waterlines; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Purchaser, among its other functions, operates a water distribution 
system serving water users within its boundaries, and is in need of a supply of treated water; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Seller has available excess capacity of treated water sufficient to supply 
the request of the Purchaser as set forth in this Contract and to satisfy the present and anticipated 
needs of its customers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Seller desires to sell and Purchaser desire to buy from Seller a supply of 
potable water as set forth herein; and 



2 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Seller and the Purchaser have agreed upon certain terms regarding the 
sale of water as mentioned above, and now desire to set forth the terms of their agreement; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual agreements 
hereinafter set forth, the parties agree as follows: 
 
A. SELLER’S OBLIGATIONS: 
 
 1. Quality and Quantity.  The Seller shall furnish the Purchaser at the point of 
delivery hereinafter specified, during the term of this Contract or any renewal or extension 
thereof, potable treated water meeting applicable purity standards of the State of North Carolina, 
Rules Governing Public Water Systems, 15 NCAC 18C, in such quantity as may be required by 
the Purchaser, not exceeding 25,000 gallons per day through the Davis Center Waterline and not 
exceeding 25,000 gallons per day through the Westmoore School Waterline, unless the parties 
agree in writing to a greater amount.  
 
 2. Point of Delivery and Pressure. 
 

a. The Seller shall furnish treated water to Purchaser at a reasonable constant pressure 
from the Seller’s existing waterlines. 
 

b. The point of delivery for the Davis Center Waterline shall be at the master meter 
located in the NC Highway 705 right-of-way immediately north of that certain parcel 
of real property owned by Amy Dunlap Garner, as evidenced by that deed recorded in 
the Moore County Registry at Book 4195, Page 542. 

 
c. The point of delivery for the Westmoore School Waterline shall be at the master 

meter located on the south side of Browns Mills Road, fifty (50) feet north of the 
intersection of Spies Road (SR 1002) and Browns Mills Road (SR 1425). 

 
d. If a greater pressure than is normally available at the point of delivery for either 

Waterline is required by the Purchaser, the cost of providing such pressure or supply 
due to main supply line breaks, power failure, flood, drought, fire and use of water to 
fight fire, earthquake or other catastrophe shall excuse the Seller from this provision 
for such reasonable period of time as may be necessary to restore service. 

 
 3. Billing Procedure.  The Seller shall read the master meter during its regular cycle 
of meter reading and to furnish the Purchaser not later than the 5th business day of the month 
with an itemized statement of the amount of water furnished the Purchaser during the preceding 
month. 
 
 4. Insurance and Liability.  It is understood and agreed that Seller will maintain 
throughout the term of this Contract damage insurance in an amount that will protect it against 
any and all damages, liability, loss and claims to the Seller’s Portion of the Waterlines as defined 
in paragraph C.4, below. It is further understood and agreed that Seller shall be responsible for 



3 
 

any injury, loss, damage, liability, costs or expenses which may arise or be imposed upon or 
incurred by or asserted against Purchaser arising out of this Contract and which are due to the 
negligent or other wrongful acts or omissions on the part of the Seller, its agents, officials, 
officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, servants and assigns. This paragraph shall 
survive the term and any extension of this Contract. 
 
B. PURCHASER’S OBLIGATION: 
 
 1. Rates and Payment Date. The Purchaser shall pay the Seller according to the 
current billing, not later than the 25th day of each month, for water delivered in accordance with 
the following rates: 
 

a. $4.00 per 1,000 gallons of actual water consumed as shown by reading the 
master meter; and 

   
b. The total sum of $5.00 per month for each master meter. 

 
 2. Metering Equipment.  The Purchaser shall operate, at its own expense, the master 
metering equipment owned by the Seller and described in paragraph A.2 above, and to maintain 
the same, and to calibrate such metering equipment whenever requested by the Seller, but not 
more frequently than once every twelve (12) months. A meter registering not more than two 
percent (2%) above or below the test result shall be deemed to be accurate. The previous 
readings of any meter disclosed by test to be inaccurate shall be corrected for the two (2) months 
previous to such test in accordance with the percentage of inaccuracy found by such tests. If any 
meter fails to register for any period, the amount of water furnished during such period shall be 
deemed to be the amount of water delivered in the corresponding period immediately prior to the 
failure, unless Seller and Purchaser agree upon a different amount. 
 
 3. Insurance and Liability.  It is understood and agreed that Purchaser will maintain 
throughout the term of this Contract property damage insurance in an amount as will protect it 
against any and all damages, liability, loss and claims to the Purchaser’s Portion of the 
Waterlines as defined in paragraph C.4, below. It is further understood and agreed that Purchaser 
shall be responsible for any injury, loss, damage, liability, costs or expenses which may arise or 
be imposed upon or incurred by or asserted against the Seller arising out of this Contract and 
which are due to the negligent or other wrongful acts or omissions on the part of the Purchaser, 
its agents, officials, officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors, servants and assigns. This 
paragraph shall survive the term and any extensions of this Contract. 
 
C. IT IS FURTHER AGREED BETWEEN THE SELLER AND THE PURCHASER 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. Contract.  The Term of this Contract is from June 17, 2016, through June 16, 
2021.   
 
 2. Failure to Deliver. The Seller will, at all times, operate and maintain its system in 
an efficient manner and will take such action as may be necessary to furnish the Purchaser with 



4 
 

quantities of water required under the terms of this Contract by the Purchaser.  Temporary or 
partial failure to deliver water shall be remedied with all possible dispatch. In the event of an 
extended shortage of water, or the supply of water available to the Seller is otherwise diminished 
over an extended period of time, the supply of water to Purchaser shall be reduced or diminished 
in the same ratios or proportion as the supply to Seller’s in-town consumers is reduced or 
diminished. 
 
 3. Modification of Contract.  The provisions of this Contract may be modified or 
altered by mutual written agreement of the parties. 
 
 4. Ownership/Maintenance of the Davis Center Waterline and Appurtenances.  The 
Seller owns that portion of each of the Davis Center Waterline beginning in the Town of Robbins 
and running in a northerly direction along NC Highway 705 up to and including the master meter 
described in paragraph A.2. Seller will maintain that portion of the Davis Center Waterline 
beginning in the Town of Robbins and running in a northerly direction along NC Highway 705 
up to the previously described master meter. The Purchaser will maintain the previously 
described master meter, owned by the Seller. The Purchaser owns and will maintain that portion 
of the Davis Center Waterline beginning on the north side of the master meter and running in a 
northerly direction along NC Highway 705 (herein after “the Purchaser’s Portion”). Seller will 
provide water service to customers connecting to the Seller’s Portion of the Davis Center 
Waterline, and the Purchaser will provide water service to customers connecting to the 
Purchaser’s Portion of the Davis Center Waterline. 
 

5. Ownership/Maintenance of the Westmoore School Waterline.  The Purchaser 
owns the Westmoore School Waterline beginning at the intersection of Spies Road (SR 1002) 
and Browns Mills Road (SR 1425), running in a northerly direction and intersecting with State 
Route 705 and running to Westmoore Elementary School. The Seller will maintain its water 
main on Spies Road west toward Montgomery County connection and east toward the Town of 
Robbins. The Purchaser will maintain the previously described master meter, owned by the 
Seller. The Purchaser will provide water service to customers connecting to the Purchaser’s 
Waterline.    
 
 6. Extensions to Waterline.  The Purchaser agrees to notify Seller in advance of any 
extensions of the Waterlines. For purposes of this Paragraph, the term “extension” shall mean 
additions to the Purchaser’s Portion of the Waterlines requiring approval from the North 
Carolina Department of Environmental Quality (“NCDEQ”), but “extension” shall not include 
the addition of customer taps to the Waterlines.  No extension entitles the Purchaser to a greater 
amount of water than that provided in paragraph A.1 above. 
 
 7. Termination. 
 

a. Termination for Cause.  Either party may terminate this Contract when the other party 
materially breaches this Contract. Termination shall be effected by providing written 
notice of the breach and the non-breaching party’s intent to terminate the Contract. 
The Contract shall be deemed terminated if the breaching party fails to correct the 
breach within ten (10) days of the receipt of the notification.  Upon such termination, 



5 
 

the parties shall be entitled to such additional rights and remedies as may be allowed 
by applicable law.  Termination of this Contract shall not form the basis of any claim 
for loss of anticipated profits by either party. 
 

b. Termination for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this Contract as a matter of 
convenience and for any cause or no cause whatsoever upon six (6) month’s written 
notice to the other party. 

 
 8. Assignment/Successor to the Purchaser.  The Seller agrees that this Contract may 
be transferred or assigned by Purchaser to a successor in interest and/or a water district formed 
by Purchaser. In the event of any occurrence rendering the Purchaser incapable of performing 
under this Contract, any successor of the Purchaser, whether the result of legal process, 
assignment, or otherwise, shall succeed to the rights of the Purchaser hereunder. 
 
 9. Notices. 
 

a. Any notice required to be given hereunder by Seller to Purchaser shall be made by 
Seller in writing and mailed by first class mail or transmitted by facsimile to the 
County Manager, County of Moore at the following address: Moore County 
Administration, Post Office Box 905, Carthage, North Carolina 28327, or by 
facsimile to (910) 947-1874. Notice shall be effective upon receipt. 

 
b. Any notices required to be given hereunder by Purchaser to Seller shall be made by 

Purchaser in writing and mailed by first class mail or transmitted by facsimile to the 
Town Manager, Town of Robbins, at the following address: Post Office Box 296, 
Robbins, North Carolina 27325, or by facsimile to (910) 948-3981.  Notices shall be 
effective upon receipt. 

 
 10. Regulatory Agencies.  This Contract is subject to such rules, regulations, or laws 
as may be applicable to similar agreements in this State, and Seller and Purchaser will 
collaborate in obtaining such permits, certificates, or the like, as may be required to comply 
therewith. 
 
 11. Governing Law.  This Contract shall be governed by and in accordance with the 
laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions relating in any way to this Contract shall be 
brought in the General Court of Justice in the County of Moore and the State of North Carolina. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, acting under authority of their respective 
governing bodies, have caused this Contract to be duly executed in duplicate counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute an original. 
 
  

[This area has been left blank intentionally.]  



6 
 

Executed  by the Town of Robbins this ___ day of ____________, 2016. 
 
      TOWN OF ROBBINS 
 
 
     By: ____________________________________  
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
        (S E A L) 
_____________________________________  
  Town Clerk 
 
 
Certificate of Town Finance Officer 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_____________________________________  
 Town Finance Officer 
 
 
 Executed by the County of Moore this the ___ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
      COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
     By: _______________________________________  
      Chairman, Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________   (S E A L) 

Clerk to the Board 
 

Certificate of County Finance Officer 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_____________________________________  
 County Finance Officer 

 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  11/15/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 11/10/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Fire Commission 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint Fire Commission members. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The current terms of service for the following Fire Commission members expire November 30th : 
 
Barbara Allred (Citizen Member – District 5) 
John McIver (Chief – South Region) 
Scotty Scott (Citizen Member – District 1) 
Erik Stromberg (Chief – West Region) 
Larry Upchurch (Citizen Member – District 3) 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments and update records. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint members to the Moore County Fire Commission for terms expiring 
November 30, 2018. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.A.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  11/15/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 11/10/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Sandhills Regional Library System Board of Trustees 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint new member to fill unexpired term on Sandhills Regional Library System Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Trustee Susan Zucchino resigned from the Sandhills Regional Library System Board effective 
October 3, 2016.  Dr. Patty Buelt, a Moore County Library Board member, has agreed to represent 
Moore County on the SLRS Board for the remainder of Ms. Zucchino’s term.   
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint Dr. Patty Buelt to the Sandhills Regional Library System Board of Trustees 
to fill the unexpired term of Susan Zucchino through June 30, 2020. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.B.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  11/15/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 11/10/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Aging Advisory Council 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint seven members to the Aging Advisory Council. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The current terms of service for the following Aging Advisory Council members expire November 
30th : 
 
Lee Baker-Kossyk 
Dot MacDonald 
Cathy Miles 
Shirley Perkins 
Leo Roberson 
Beulah Warren 
Mary Jane White 
 
Each is recommended for reappointment to an additional term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments and update records. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Lee Baker-Kossyk, Dot MacDonald, Cathy Miles, Shirley Perkins, Leo 
Roberson, Beulah Warren, and Mary Jane White to the Aging Advisory Council for three-year terms 
expiring November 30, 2019. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.C.


	AGENDA
	V.A. 11/1/16 MINUTES
	V.B. CALICO RIDGE BOARD ORDER
	V.C. TAX RELEASES/REFUNDS
	V.D. INSOLVENTS
	V.E. WELL SITE 11
	V.F. WELL SITE 8
	V.G. HWY 22 PROPERTY BID
	V.H. BUDGET AMENDMENT
	VIII.A. LOBS 
	VIII.B. FEMA REIMBURSEMENT
	VIII.C. AC SCHULTES CHANGE ORDER
	VIII.D. LAND SWAP WITH VOP
	VIII.E. ROBBINS WATER
	IX.A. APPTS/FIRE COMM
	IX.B. APPTS/SRLS
	IX.C. APPTS/AGING



